

AMERICAN LEGION AUXILIARY



DEPARTMENT OF ALASKA BYLAWS 2023

BYLAWS OF THE AMERICAN LEGION AUXILIARY

DEPARTMENT OF ALASKA

ARTICLE I - Organization

- Section 1. The Department of Alaska, American Legion Auxiliary, shall be composed of Units corresponding to Posts of The American Legion, Department of Alaska.
- Section 2. Units shall function in accordance with the National, Department, and Unit Constitutions and Bylaws and such Standing Rules as shall be prescribed by the Department.

ARTICLE II - Elections

- Section 1. The election of Officers and delegates shall be governed by Department Convention rules. A majority of votes cast shall be necessary to elect.
- Section 2. All Officers shall be elected annually. Such Officers shall serve until the adjournment of the succeeding Department Convention or until their successors are chosen. Vacancies in these offices occurring between Department Conventions shall be filled by the Department Executive Committee.
- Section 3. All Department Officers, members of the Department Executive Committee and members of all committees shall be in good standing in the local Units.
- Section 4. All members shall be eligible for re-election to all Department offices, with a two-term limit for Department President, Department First Vice President, Department Second Vice President and Department Historian.

PROVISO: Effective April 27, 2019, any member having previously served a one-year term as Department President, Department First Vice President, Department Second Vice President or Department Historian is eligible to run for one additional term, not to exceed two years total.

ARTICLE III - Duties of Officers

- Section 1. Department President: It shall be the duty of the Department President to preside at all meetings of the Department Convention and meetings of the Department Executive Committee; to appoint members of the standing committees, and create such other committees and appoint members thereon as the Department President deems advisable; and to appoint all officers not otherwise provided for, with the approval of the Department Executive Committee. The Department President shall be ex-officio member of all committees and shall perform such other duties as are usually incident to the office. The Department President shall be charged with the responsibility of executing the mandates of the Department Convention and the Department Executive Committee. The Department President shall not waive their rights to the Department Secretary or any other person, permitting the signing of their name to applications for charter or the charters issued by National Headquarters, or any other legal document pertaining to the Department.
- Section 2. Department Vice Presidents: It shall be the duty of the First and Second Vice Presidents, when called upon, to assist the President, and in the Department President's absence perform the Department President's duties and shall, in the order named, succeed the Department President in office in case of death, resignation or removal.
- Section 3. Department Secretary: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to record proceedings of the Department Convention and Department Executive Committee meetings. The Secretary sends information, calls to meetings, keeps all records and performs other duties incident to the office. When a new Secretary is appointed, the retiring Secretary must turn over to the successor all equipment, monies, vouchers, books and papers belonging to the Department immediately. The Secretary is bonded by a bonding company, as are all members who handle funds.

- Section 4. The Department Treasurer is the custodian of the funds of the Department and shall account for the same. There must be two authorized signatures on file at the bank and either may sign checks. The Treasurer shall make reports upon the condition of the Department Treasury when called for by the Department President and the Department Finance Committee. The accounts shall be reconciled quarterly by the Department Finance Committee who must send report of findings, expenditures and balances of all accounts to the Department Executive Committee. The Audit Committee will audit the Finance Committee's year-end report at the Department Convention. An outside audit will be performed every spring prior to the Department Convention by the accounting firm retained by the American Legion Auxiliary, Department of Alaska to conduct the financial affairs of the Department. When a new Treasurer is appointed, the retiring Treasurer must turn over to the successor all equipment, moneys, vouchers, books and papers belonging to the Department immediately. The Treasurer is bonded by a bonding company, as are all members who handle funds.
- Section 5. Department Chaplain: It shall be the duty of the Department Chaplain to officiate at the Department Convention, and perform other duties ordinarily incident to the office and other duties which may be assigned by the Department President. The Chaplain is to instruct all the Unit Chaplains as to the solemnity of their duties.
- Section 6. Department Historian: It shall be the duty of the Historian to compile the records of the Department and make a report to the National Historian.
- Section 7. Department Sergeant-at-Arms: It shall be the duty of the Sergeant-at-Arms to preserve order at the Department Convention and Department Executive Committee meetings and to perform other duties ordinary to this office or those assigned by the Department President or Department Secretary. The Sergeant-at-Arms is responsible for escorting Distinguished Guests during meetings or official functions.
- Section 8. Members may hold the office of Department President, Department First Vice President, Department Second Vice President and Department Historian for a maximum of two terms. Members wishing to hold any other Department office will be allowed to serve more than two terms.

Section 9. Any elected officer who fails to discharge the duties of their office may be removed from that office, upon written charges, after due notice and hearing before the Department Executive Committee.

ARTICLE IV - Department Executive Committee

Section 1. The Department Executive Committee shall have general supervision and control over all property belonging to the Department and shall supervise the administration of the Department according to the Constitution and Bylaws, and such other rulings as the Department may prescribe.

Section 2. The Department Executive Committee shall be empowered to call a Department Executive Committee meeting in case of emergency.

Section 3. Quorum: Six members, they must be from different Units, shall constitute a quorum of the Department Executive Committee.

Section 4. Meetings: The Department Executive Committee shall hold at least four meetings per year as follows: Immediately following adjournment of the annual Department Convention; immediately preceding the holding of the succeeding Department Convention; and at an appropriate time during the National Convention, but only to the extent that the business being conducted is in reference to voting on the National floor or National business, election of National Officers or special donations, or ratification of any outstanding Department appointments. It shall also meet at the Fall Conference. A meeting may also be called by the Department President or when requested in writing to do so by three members of the Department Executive Committee or in an emergency, at the request of the Department Secretary.

While it is preferred that meetings of the Department Executive Committee be held in person, they may be also held electronically (such as Zoom or some other electronic method) or telephonically.

Section 5. All questions affecting the election, eligibility and conduct of Department Officers, National Executive Committee Members, or any member of the Department Executive Committee shall be referred to and determined by the Department Executive Committee, which shall be the final authority thereon.

ARTICLE V – Standing Committees

Section 1. The Department President shall appoint Chairs of Standing Committees conforming with National. The President shall appoint other committees as deemed advisable, subject to ratification by the Department Executive Committee. The Department President is **an** ex-officio member of all Committees. Standing Committee Chairs must submit a yearly report at Department Convention.

Section 2. There shall be the following Standing Committees: Americanism, Audit, Auxiliary Emergency Fund, History, Children and Youth, Community Service, Constitution and Bylaws, Distinguished Guest, Education, Finance, Girls State, Junior Activities, Leadership, Legislative, Membership, National Security, Past Presidents Parley, Poppy, Public Relations, and Veterans Affairs and Rehabilitation.

Section 3. Of the Standing Committees named in Section 2, Children and Youth, and Veterans Affairs and Rehabilitation shall have both a chair and co-chair. The Co-Chair of Children and Youth serves as the liaison to the Child Welfare Foundation. The Co-Chair of Veterans Affairs and Rehabilitation is the liaison to the Service to Veterans subcommittee.

Section 4. There shall be the following sub-committees: Service to Veterans, Electronic Media, Scholarship, VAVS, and American Legion Auxiliary Veterans' Christmas Projects. These sub-committees report all activities or findings to their respective Chair who will then report to Department and National. All correspondence from these sub-committees must go through the respective Chair.

ARTICLE VI - Unit Organization

- Section 1. Units shall be chartered by the National President and National Secretary upon receipt of the Charter Application properly executed with typewritten names of the applicants on the original (white sheet) and accompanied by the per capita dues and individual membership record forms. Application for Unit Charters shall be signed by the Department President and the Commander and Adjutant of The American Legion Post to which the Unit is attached and said Charter shall be closed thirty days after the application has been signed by the Commander of said American Legion Post.
- Section 2. The minimum membership of a Unit shall be ten senior members.
- Section 3. A Unit shall be given the name and number of The American Legion Post to which it is attached.
- Section 4. Each Unit of the American Legion Auxiliary shall be the judge of its own membership, subject to the restrictions of the Constitution and Bylaws, except that no person who is a member of an organization which has for its aim the overthrow of the United States Government by force or violence, or who subscribes to the principles of any group opposed to our form of government, shall be eligible to become or remain a member of the American Legion Auxiliary.
- Section 5. All Units in the Department are required to file their Constitution and Bylaws with Department Headquarters before their Unit Charter will be issued.
- Section 6. When a Unit ceases to function, or its Charter has been revoked or canceled, the Charter and all Unit records and funds shall be immediately forwarded to Department Headquarters.
- Section 7. No person may, at any time, be a member of more than one Unit.
- Section 8. A member who is not subject to suspension or membership revocation under due process is eligible to transfer their membership to another unit if the member has paid their membership dues to their current unit for either the current year or immediate past membership year. A member transferring to a new unit must pay current year dues to either their current unit or to the unit into which they wish to transfer.

Transfer is final upon verification of eligibility, evidence of paid membership, and acceptance of the transferee by the Unit.

Evidence of paid membership includes:

1. American Legion Auxiliary Membership Card
2. Verification of membership by ALA Department or National Headquarters membership records
3. Other documentation verifying payment of current or immediate past year membership dues such as a cancelled check or receipt: or
4. When verifying documentation is not available, a sworn statement that the member's membership dues payment was tendered.

Section 9. A Unit member may withdraw providing their current dues are fully paid. Upon withdrawal, however, the member shall be prohibited from joining any other Unit as a new member during the remainder of the current year for which said dues are paid. In the event a member wishes to remove their membership from one Unit to another during the current year, it shall be done by transfer and not by withdrawal.

Section 10. For any violation of the Department or National Constitution, or for conduct improper and prejudicial to the welfare of the American Legion Auxiliary or of The American Legion, any member may be expelled from membership or any officer removed from office by a two-thirds vote at a Unit meeting duly called for that purpose. Said expulsion or removal shall be binding only in the event said member or officer shall have been given fifteen (15) days' notice in writing by the Unit Executive Committee of the charges and the hearing thereon. Either party may have the right to appeal to the Department Executive Committee, and its action thereon shall be final. The expense of said appeal shall be borne by the appellant.

Section 11. Expulsion from one Unit prevents a member from applying for membership in any other Unit.

Section 12. Unit Officers shall be elected each year in March prior to the holding of the Department Convention. They may, if desired, be installed before the Department Convention, but not assume their duties until after the Department Convention. Terms of Unit Standing Committee Chairs must coincide with the terms of Unit Officers.

- Section 13. A Unit President, President Elect or any other Unit Officer, who moves their residence from the area in which the Unit is located, should resign their office unless the move is still within a reasonable distance of the town in which the Unit is located. The Unit Executive Committee is to decide what a “reasonable distance” is and whether or not it would affect the functions of the office.
- Section 14. All persons handling funds of the Unit shall be bonded, such position bonds being available through Department Headquarters.
- Section 15. Units in the Department wishing to send a citizen to Girls State must first pay up its own charter membership (at least ten Senior members) and meet all Department requirements.

ARTICLE VII – Finance

- Section 1. The Revenue of the American Legion Auxiliary, Department of Alaska, shall be derived from annual membership dues of Senior and Junior members, and from such other sources as may be approved by the Department Executive Committee. The annual dues shall be collected by each Unit and transmitted through the Department to the National Treasurer.
- Section 2. Membership dues shall be payable annually for the succeeding calendar year or for life. A member failing to pay such annual dues by January 31st shall be classed delinquent and shall be suspended from all membership privileges, provided, however, such suspended member shall be notified in writing by the Secretary of the Unit of such suspension prior thereto. Payment of back dues, after suspension, shall reinstate such member to active membership. Any member delinquent to December 31st of the year of delinquency shall automatically be dropped from the rolls and may not thereafter be reinstated without a vote on application for membership, and the payment of all past dues, or by re-establishing eligibility and making application as a new member.

- Section 3. All special funds shall be levied and administered as directed by the Department Executive Committee.
- Section 4. With the exception of the Department Secretary and the Department Treasurer there shall be no salaried officers of the Department. Necessary expenses incurred by Department Officers, the Department Executive Committee and Department Chairs of Standing Committees in the exercise of their services and duties may be paid from the Department Treasury by order of the Department Executive Committee.
- Section 5. The Department Secretary and the Department Treasurer shall be bonded, such position bonds being available through a bonding company.
- Section 6. Department Executive Committee expenditures not authorized by the budget shall be limited to a maximum of \$500.00 from any account.

ARTICLE VIII – Charters

- Section 1. The Department Executive Committee may revoke, cancel or suspend a Unit Charter.
- Section 2. Any Unit failing to meet the obligations imposed upon it by the Constitution and Bylaws or by rulings of Convention or Department Executive Committee or ceasing to function from one Department Convention to the next as an American Legion Auxiliary Unit, or refusing to pay the per capita tax due Department and National organizations, shall, upon order of the Department President, surrender its Charter. Upon failure to surrender such Charter, immediate steps may be taken by the Department Executive Committee for revocation of the same.
- Section 3. American Legion Auxiliary Units suffering revocation of their charters may appeal from the decision of the Department Executive Committee to the National Executive Committee.

Section 4. The Department Executive Committee may order the suspension of a Charter for a period not to extend beyond the closing of the next succeeding Department Convention as a disciplinary measure or pending action relative to final revocation.

Section 5. A cancellation of a Unit Charter shall be in order where two or more Units merge, where a Unit ceases to function or under such other conditions as might make such action necessary within a Department. In the event a Unit Charter is canceled without the consent of such Unit, it shall have the right to appeal to the National Executive Committee.

ARTICLE IX - Parliamentary Authority

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall be the parliamentary authority in all cases in which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the National Constitution, Bylaws, Standing and Special Rules.

ARTICLE X - Amendments

Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended at any Department Convention by a vote of two-thirds of the total authorized representation there at, provided that the proposed amendments shall have been submitted through the Department Secretary to the several Units and members of the Department Executive Committee by mailing same to them at least thirty days prior to the convening of the next Department Convention; and provided further that all proposed amendments shall be read at a regular meeting of the Convention.

Section 2. Necessary amendments proposed after distribution or revision as shown in Section 1 will be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the delegation, provided that they have been read at one meeting of the session prior to taking the vote.

Section 3. An amendment not having been previously read or distributed as required in Section 1, will be adopted by the unanimous vote of the Convention body.

Section 4. Amendments to the National Bylaws adopted by National Convention action shall become effective in this Department.

Section 5. All amendments shall go into effect upon adoption.

ARTICLE XI - Authority

The authority under which this Department and its Units shall function is vested in the National and Department Constitution and Bylaws and in such Standing Rules as have been duly adopted and set forth in the Department Constitution and Bylaws and Unit Handbook of the American Legion Auxiliary. Any provision of the Department or Unit Constitution and Bylaws or regulation of the Department or Unit in conflict with the foregoing authority shall be void. All points not covered shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised.



Anarene Robinson
Department President

April 29, 2023

Date



Barbara Nath
Department Secretary

April 29, 2023

Date